Exeter

City Council

Please ask for: Sharon Sissons

Direct Dial: 01392 265115

Email: .Si .gov.
To the Chair and Members mai sharon.sissons@exeter.gov.uk
of the Audit and Governance Committee our ref:

Your ref:

A meeting of the AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE will be held in the Rennes Room, Civic
Centre, Paris Street, Exeter at 5.30 pm on WEDNESDAY 27 NOVEMBER 2013 to consider the
following business. If you have an enquiry regarding any items on this agenda, please contact Sharon
Sissons, Democratic Services Officer (Committees) on Exeter 265115.

Entry to the Civic Centre can be gained through the Customer Service Centre, Paris Street.

Pages
AGENDA

Part |: Items suggested for discussion with the press and public present

1 APOLOGIES
To receive apologies for absence from Committee Members.
2 MINUTES
To sign the minutes of the meeting held on 26 September 2013.

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillors are reminded of the need to declare any disclosable pecuniary
interests that relate to business on the agenda and which have not already been
included in the register of interests, before any discussion takes place on the
item. Unless the interest is sensitive, you must also disclose the nature of the
interest. In accordance with the Council's Code of Conduct, you must then leave
the room and must not participate in any further discussion of the item.
Councillors requiring clarification should seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer
prior to the day of the meeting.

4 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 -
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED that, under Section 100A94) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
press and public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of Appendix
B of item 11 on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1, Schedule 12A of the Act.

Office of Corporate Manager Democratic & Civic Support

Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter, EX1 1JN Tel: 01392 277888 Fax: 01392 265593 www.exeter.gov.uk




10

ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2013 (GRANT THORNTON)

The Council’s External Auditor, Grant Thornton, will present the Audit Judgement
— report circulated

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT

To consider the report of the Audit Managers — report circulated

REVISION OF THE INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2013/14

To consider the report of the Audit Managers — report circulated

PROTOCOL FOR RECORDING COMMITTEE MEETINGS

To consider the report of the Corporate Manager Democratic Services and Civic
Support - report circulated

REGISTER OF INTEREST FORMS AND CODE OF CONDUCT

To consider the report of the Head of Legal Services/Monitoring Officer — report
circulated

PRESENTATION OF THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RISK REGISTER
QUARTERLY REVIEW

To consider the report of the Corporate Manager Policy, Communications and
Community Engagement — report circulated

Part Il: Item Suggested For Discussion with the Press and Public Excluded

11

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RISK REGISTER QUARTERLY REVIEW
(APPENDIX B)

To consider the report of the Corporate Manager Policy, Communications and
Community Engagement — report circulated to Members

19 - 30

31-32

33 -38

39-74

75-76

77 -82

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee will be held on
Wednesday 12 March 2014 at 5.30 pm

Membership -

Councillor Simon Bowkett (Chair), Councillors Baldwin (Deputy Chair), Branston, Choules,

D J Henson, Laws, Leadbetter, Morris, Payne, Ruffle and Spackman




Find out more about Exeter City Council services by looking at our web site
http://www.exeter.gov.uk. This will give you the dates of all future Committee meetings and tell you
how you can ask a question at a Scrutiny Committee meeting. Alternatively, contact the Democratic
Services Officer (Committees) on (01392) 265115 for further information.

Individual reports on this agenda can be produced in large print
on request to Democratic Services (Committees) on 01392
265111.

Please remember to recycle. If you would prefer not to receive paper copies please let us

know. Contact Democratic Services (Committees) 01392 265197 or email
committee.services@exeter.gov.uk




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5

woo 1B yn@sulwwngebiu 3
0+82G0€ /L0 L

Jabeuep upny

sujwuwi] |96IN

woo1Byn@suiowsuieq 3

80/, G0E€ L0 L
peaT Juswabebug

sLop\ aLueg

€10¢ 1890100
€10C YO4e|N LE PIpud Jeajp

[PouUNo")
A317) 3939X7] JOF 9139 PNy [enUUY Y T,

uojuIoy | Juelo) °

Page 5



11-01
678
L9
G-¢
abed

€10¢ 1900100 | JoNeT HPNY [ENUUY | dT1MN UOIOYL JUe1) €10 ©

$99] put panssi qu—OQDMH \Y4

soorpuaddy

SUINJOT PUE SWIE]D JULI3 JO UONEIYNIIN)
KouoTA] 03 onfe A
$)UNODIE I} JO PPNy

Arewrums 9ANNDIXY

h%
¢
K4
T

uonoag

SIU9IUO")

Page 6



€102 1940100 | J19WSTHPNY [EnUUY | dT7MN UoIoyL Jueln €10 ©

suanjai pue swie|d juelb jo uonesyed 0
Asauoyy 10} anjep  "€0

Sjunodde 8y} Jo Upny 20

Page 7

Alewiwins aAnnoaxg

ATewuwins OATINOOXE] ] UOMDIIS




JUIWPUIWL JNOTPIM
POTJIIIAD 9TIM YOIYM JO (O ‘SUINIST PUE SWITLD JULIS OM] PIJTITOD JALY oM o
uorssIuIqns
$JUNO2DY JUIWIUIIAOL) JO IO A\ §,[PUNOT) ) UO TOISNPUOD pagrenbun ue
$92INOSIT JO IS SIT UT SSIUANIIJJ2 pue Louamnmya ‘“Awouodsd Furmoss
703 SIUdWRSUEIIE S [PUNOY) 213 JO 109dsa1 Ur uorsnPUOd paygenbun ue
7294 913 303 INyIPUAdXD
PUE WODUT S PUE ¢ Y2FEIA] [¢ I St BonTsod [eldueUl S [1DUN0Y)
9} JO AITA JTeJ PUE ONI) € 9AL3 YOI s1unodde oy uo vorurdo pagienbun ue
'SMOT[O] SE 9T ¢T /7107 O) BONE[I U PIPTaoId oAy oM SUOISNOUOD JIPNE YT,
SUOISN|2U0D JIpNy

“UOISSTWWON) Ipny 9} £q panss 9ouepms 1po pue (PUERI] pue S[) Sunpny
UO SPFEPULIS [EUONEUINU] (9POD) 91, 991DBIJ IPNY JO 9PO7) S, UOISSTIIWOT)
IPNY Y} TPIA 9DULPIOIDE U PRIONPUOD SEM PUE ¢ () dUN( 97 TO Panssy am
JEY) U IPOY 91 [IIM 9DUEPIOIIE U UDYEIFOPUN TII( Sl “YFOM PIUTUIIIP
A[reoo] pue paqrrosard A[reuoneu sopnppur YoIYM ‘Owrwrerdord yFom [enuue 0

€10¢ 1900100 | JoNeT HPNY [ENUUY | dT1MN UOIOYL JUe1) €10 ©

‘(£ouoTy] 703 onJE A) S9OINOSIT
JO 9SN $IT UT SSOUIATIIVJJD PuE LOUIINJ ‘Awrouods o1ndas 0) syuswaduerre rodord
ooe[d ur Sunind 303 o[qrsuodsar Os[e ST 1] JUIWIEIS IDULUIIAOL) [eNUUY UL £q

poruedwosoe ‘syunodode s37 Jurysiqnd pue Surredord 303 o[qrsuodsor st pUNOY) oY T,

(
v QoﬂmmﬂaEOU uﬂu5< Dﬂu \Aﬂ ﬁuwﬂwwﬂ wvﬂuom —U@u%ﬂ&& UQ& wHOu%5< WO
w@ﬁaﬂﬂmQOﬂwwm MO aﬁvawu.ﬁm wﬂu WO 1X391U0D uﬂa Qﬂ UOH&QQW—Q wan— wmﬂ uwﬁw‘H wﬁﬂvﬁ
[19Uno09) 3y} pue siojiphe [eulalxa ayj} Jo saijijiqisuodsay

"€10Z Fqudag 9z wo 130doy] sSurpur,|

1pny 93 U 9911TWWO) 30ULUI0AO0L) PUE JIPNY 9] O] IHJom JIpne Jno woiJ
wwc%ﬁm Parrelep o3 @DHHOQQM I\ .Uﬂﬁ—ﬂ@ 973 JO sroquiowr MQ%ﬂJUQM ﬁwaﬁﬁOQOMNuw
[euJalXo puE [IDUNOY) 9Y] O wDdew@E %OM I1EJTUNWIWIOD O] PIPUIIUL ST J91197 94T,

*(An03 UON9Q) SUFNIIT PUE STWTE[D JULIS JO UONEIYNIID
(99711 UOMDIG) SIDINOSIT JO IS SIT UT SSIUIANIIJJO
pue £5udKJ0e ‘AWou0d9 SUINIIS J0J SIUSWISUEITE §,[IPUNOT) IY) SUISSISSE o
(om1 yonoag) vorsSTIIqNS
$IUNODDY JUIWUIIA0L) JO J[OY X\ PUE SIUNOIDE ¢ /710 Y Sunipne
'CT0Z YoTeIN 1€ popuo 7eaf o1
303 ([rPUno’) atp,) [1PUNOY) A7) J9IOXG I8 INO PILIFED ALY M 1) YIOM SUIMO[[0]
o) wo3y Surstre sSUIPUY A9y oy saspewwNS (F21397],) J9I9] NPNY [BNUBY InQ
193391 siyj jo asoding

ATewriuns 9ATINIIXE]

Page 8



€10C 3990100
dTT13 uvoruioyJ, juein)

‘JJeIs s JIPuNo)) ot Aq I1pne Jno Jurmp sn o) papraoid
uvonerado-oo pue 2ouElsIsse o) J0J yoneardde o PIrod9T I PINOA I A\

'C10T FQUWDAON] L7 UO 99)TWWOY) DUVBUIIAOL) PUE JIPNY 9}
0] wuuzwwwu—& 9q [[I PUE 9ARNDIXY JITYD) 2 PIm Uuuuwa U99(q S J9197] SIY T,
sjuawalbpajmouwyoy

€10¢ 1900100 | JoNeT HPNY [ENUUY | dT1MN UOIOYL JUe1) €10 ©

JuowINd0Id pue JUdURSeuLWw

[STF JOJ s1uowoSuLITE 91e30dr00 paduEyud s Funuodwodwr Surpnpur
swwrerdord UONEWIOJSUET) $IT JO SIFAVIQ S SISLIT [PUNOY) ) Supmsud

pue ©93pnq s [PUNOY) oY) BO saxnssaxd
[evonippe Ind [ WI0JoF dTEJ[oM O} I SUOTE ‘SIOTATIS JOJ PULWIIP PISLITOUT o

Sowr

ore sjuowarmbaz (e UEUN [[B 9Insuo 0} sued Suraes payreop osowr Surdoasp
Apuozmod s1 pue peoye s7eak o) UT soInssord [BIDULUTJ JNOJIP S90E] [IOUNOT) 9
:SOSUD[[BYD JULDTJTUSIS SIDEJ [IDUNOY) ) PIEATO] SUINOO' |

“JUOWIDIE]S 2DUEINSSE Payenbun ue ponssy om pue sonsst Aue AJNuUapr Jou
PP (VD)) UINIRI SJUNO0DIY TUIWUIIAOL) JO I[OTYA) §,[FPUNOY) Y} UO JFom InQ)

“premIoy Sur03 JOPISUOD
0} [IPUNO7) Y} FOJ SLITE JO JOQUINY [[BWUS B PIPAUIPT 9\ "UOISNPUOD pagenbun
PUE ponssT oM pue sansst JuedTudrs Lue AJnuopr 10U prp yFom Aouows J0J onfea Q)

‘sjuowyajels [erourury

21 uo QOMQMQO pne .@@@EN5TQS UE Panssy 9\ - uonewiojur Jo Qoﬂuwuﬁwwww—&

PUE UONEIIJISSE[D 9] O wuﬁogmﬂ.ﬁﬁﬂ Jourws JoO joqumu [[ews e UUUHM& I\ .QOﬁﬂwO&
[eroueuy ﬁwwMOva— S,[FPUNO7) Iy} wﬁﬁuwm—ww wuﬁwﬁbwﬂ:ud Aue @ﬁﬁvﬁuﬁ 10U PIP 9\

"IN 9} UT [IOUNO7) ) Suroe] sonsst 403 SunySrysry se [[oA St JOPISTOD

0} [IPUNO7) 9} JOJ JIPNE JNO WOoIJ SUrsITe soSessow Lo ) 930 ISITEUFWNS X\
uoljuajje [I2uno? 10} seaie Aoy

ATelIiuns 9ATINDIXE]

Page 9



€102 1940100 | J19WSTHPNY [EnUUY | dT7MN UoIoyL Jueln €10 ©

suinjai pue swieo juelb Jo uoneosyie) “Ho

Asuoyy 10} anjep g0

Sjunodde ay} Jo upny

Alewwins annoaxg 1o

S1UnodJdt 9yl JO JIpny g UONO3§

Page 10



TPUnoy) 2yl
%ﬂ PapF0od93 OH#&%QOQNQ pue owodur 24l JO pue GOUMwOQ [erueury s [Iunon)
91 JO MITA JTE] pUE oI} ® @xﬁw $1UNOJJ% 9] Jey]) powWwisjuod QOMQMQQ mQ

JUIWIUIIAOL) [ED0 ] PUE SINTUNWILION)
703 Juounredo(] oy3 £q 198 QUIPEIP A} JO prIYE ‘C1 (g Foquiardag

Qg UO S1UN02® ¢ /ZT0T S,PUNoy) a1 o uorurdo pagienbun ue panssy o\
*391397T STU} UT $93esSoUr A0y 91} A[UO dsTrewriuns

PUE ¢10g Tqualdog 9z uo 991Twon) 9y} 03 130dos 1o pajuasard

9\ “([PUNOD) 93 1B 99NTWIWOT) DUVBUIIAOL) PUEL JIPOY I} SE POULIP)
90UBUISA0S TPIM PaSILYD 9SO, 01 IPNE 1) WOIJ SUISIIE ST JULIYTUSIS
130do7 03 pasmbaz are om ‘sjunodde oy vo uorurdo o FurArd 03 JOT

uoisn|ouo)

"$]UNOD0E ATOINIEIS O YA JUIISISTOD
SeM UOTBWIFOJUT Pasmbox o) 181} POWIIFUOD YDTUMA JUT[PEIP [EUONEU 1) JO
90UBAPE UT JUDWIDIE)S 9DULINSSE W0 JIOYS B Pansst 9\ "Yoed uoneprosuod
311 JO 1pne [[NJ & SUReIF2pUN JOJ PIOYSIIY] Y MO[Aq SEA TFMIT § [IOUNOY)
o[ T, *90uepIMS 8 YOTSSIUIUIOT) WP O I SUT[ UT JFoM Ino pajo[dwod apy

(VD A\) UINJaI S)UNODOY JUIWUIIAOKL) JO I[OYA\

€10¢ 1900100 | JoNeT HPNY [ENUUY | dT1MN UOIOYL JUe1) €10 ©

TOVTIOS/VAAID Aq PINSST  suomanivd, | Juattuiaaos) jpso | Uz 2upiiaaos)

P00y Suziaaza(], BF PaqII2sa3d sIUAWRE oY) PauTLIu0d put (HVVSVT/VAIID)
WOPSUTS] Poyu[ 93 UT SURUNODOY AIFOYINY [E20T UO 90T JO 9pO)) o3 JO
s)yawaIMbaz oty P parduwrod JUaWIRIEIG 2OULUIAOL) [BNUHY S [IOUNOY) a1,

juswaje)s asueusanob jenuuy

'sJunoddE A} 03 sajou Junioddns

91} UT UONBWIOJUT JO UGONLIUIsaFd o1} 01 PUL SIUSWAIL)S [BDULUI UTEW 91} UT
SUI93T JO UOMEDIJISSE[D 9} O} SIUDWISNIPE JO JoqUUNU [[EWS & OPEW 34\ ‘Uonrsod
[epueuy pajodas spunon) oy Sunosagye syusunsnfpe Aue AJNUapT 10U PIP A\

sjunod2e 3y} jo jipne a3y} woui Buisiuie sanssj

weo) 2oueuyy o Aq Apdword ym 1[eop o3om BOIEUIFOJUT
[euonIppe 103 sisonbox e pue prepuels poo3 v 03 pasedord ozom sjunoddE O[T,

“YIOMPIT ITPNE Y} JO 1TeIS I} WOTJ J[E[TLAL
opewr 93oM s3unodde ot Supisoddns szoded Sun{Io Ay PUIPEIP [BUONEU O M
9OULPIOIDE UT ‘CT ()7 2UN[ /g WO SIUNOIIE JJLIP P 1 pajuasard [punon) oy,

sjunod2e ayj} jo uonesedaid

:MO[9q PISITEUIWINS 9T€ S)UNOIDE I} JO JIpNE Ino Jo sgurpury £33 oy T,

sjunodsde a3y} Jo }pny

S1UnoJd2¥ 9yl JO pny

Page 11



€102 1940100 | J19WSTHPNY [EnUUY | dT7MN UoIoyL Jueln €10 ©

suinjai pue swieo juelb Jo uoneoyiey “Ho

Aauoyy 10} anjep

Sjunodde 8y} Jo Upny 20

Alewwins annoaxg 1o

ASUOTN JOJ oNJEA € UONDIG

Page 12



€10C YN 1¢
Surpuo 784 91} JOJ SIOINOSIT JO ISN SIT UT SSIUIANDIJJ pue AoUdmJo ‘Awouodd

omoas 03 syuoweduesre Jodoid ooe(d ur ind ounon) o syoadsor JuedTUSTS
[[& UT 18U} POTJSHIES 9T€ oM ‘UOISSTWO ) PNy 9y} £q paysiqnd e
paygads oy o 2duEpmMS oy 01 PFLSaT FUTALY PUE YFOM INO JO SISeq oY) TO)
uoISN|ouod N4A I 420

“Sunzodas parmbox 1e sonsst Aue JYSYSIY 10U PIP 94 JFOM N0

‘sapuaPPIe put A1anonpoid paaoidwy pue STONINPIT 150D PIAIIYIE SEY

I1 IoAYM puE unpIA ezado 03 parmbaz st 1T SIUTETISTOD F9IYSN 211 JO JUNOIIE
93[e} O} S9OINOSIT $JT PISNIFOI Sey] FOUNOT) O JOUIIYA PIMITAIT DALY IA\
SSOUQANIIYYD pue ADUIIDIPI ‘Awrouodd Furduaqrey)

"€10T Pquardag
Gﬂ QQHﬁEEOU DUQNGH®>O@ X u%‘D/.N uﬁﬁ o] @oﬁmwﬂ quQQH ouﬁwﬂmmwm Tﬂudmﬁﬂm

Jno ur —UOUTVOMQ 9JE S[Te1op Joylin,J "'uoIsnouod Asuowr JO3 onfeA Jno uo HUNQEM
10U pIp pUE sansst uﬁdumﬂﬁwﬂw 9( O] PaJopISUOD 2FoM IS9Y] JO 9UuOU AHU\ww\K/OHlH ‘uo

SND0J PNOYSs [IPUNO7) 973 eyl wwﬁﬂuﬁm Jo Joquinu Jewis e Uwuﬂm:ﬂ.wﬁﬂ Jyrom amnQo

“[OTTOD [EULUT
Suruuerd repueuy
DULUIIAOS [EDULUY

€10¢ 1900100 | JoNeT HPNY [ENUUY | dT1MN UOIOYL JUe1) €10 ©

‘UOTSSTWWIO)

Ipny o3 Aq pourgop se syuowodueire 70dord Jo sonseoEIeyd Paldadxo doIy oy
JSUTESE SJUWRSULITE S [IDUNOY) Y} PAISPISUOD [YOTYM MITAIT B UIYEIIIPUN JABY A\
9DURI[ISAI [eIdUBUY SULINDIG

sBuipuily Aoy

“f1anonpoid pue £ouarnye

Suraorduwr £4q pue suononpar 1s0d 3uradryoe Aq spdurexo J03 ‘s3108pnq FOIYSH UTYPIM
$90JNO0SDT $3T FUISNIFOTId ST [IDUNOY) 9T, *SSIUIANIIYJD PUE ADUIIDNJI ‘AWOU0Id
$9IN23s 11 Moy SurSud[reyd Joj spudwasuesre yodoxd sey [pPuno) ay T,

"2IMINJ J[LIISIIOJ o) J0J 91eFd0O 0 INUPUOD 03 IT SI[BUD

ey} yonrsod [erUBUY J[qels B 23nd9s 01 pue ‘soptumioddo pue sysix [epuEUY
£[0A1109339 98eurws 0 $9$59001d pUE SWVISAS ISNQOT S [FOUNOT) IY T, *IOUII[ISI
reroueuyy Sunnoas 3oy ao¢eld ur syjuowaSuesse odoid sey [pPuUno) ay T,

PpoO7) A} IPpuUN
sanmqrsuodsar Sunzodor o 130ddns yomym vorssTIIWO)) IIPNY 91 Aq payads
©II11I0 0M] SUIMO[O] 9} VO PIskq TOISNPUOD L] A & JAIS 01 parmbax axe o4\

“SIUWDSULIIE 98I JO SSOUDANIIJJO pue Loenbope oy Arendor morasr
20ueuIA03 put dryspremals odoxd ormsuo

$9OINOSIT JO ISN ST UT SSIUIATIOIJJO pue £oUamnye ‘AWOU09 211098 o

:0} syuswadueIre

3odoxd aoeyd ur 1nd 03 sapyIqIsuodsar s [IPUNOY) Ay} SAQIIDSIP PO YT,
340M Jo 2doog

ASUOTA 703 onfeA

Page 13



€102 1940100 | J19WSTHPNY [EnUUY | dT7MN UoIoyL Jueln €10 ©

suinjal pue swie|d jueb jo uonesyey -

Asauoyy 10} anjep  "€0
SJunodde ay} jo Upny ‘20

Arewwns aannoaxg "o

SUINIOT PUE SWIE[D JUBIS JO UONEIYNIYY) f UONIIG

Page 14



L

€10¢ 1900100 | JoNeT HPNY [ENUUY | dT1MN UOIOYL JUe1) €10 ©

"CT0Z FOQUIA23(T UT [IOUNOT) 33 0} PINSST 9q [[IA YOTYA 170doT UOTEINIID INO UT
oM JNO 03] so3essowr o JU9saId [ oM pue SUTOS-UO ST YFOM UONEIYNIID N0
sabessaw A3y

“UIN}OF JO WIE[D

oyads oea 303 ([D) UONINTISU] UONEITISY) € A SJOIIPNE Sanss pue ‘Aouode
30 JuounIedop JUSWUIIAOS JULAI[OT [OBD (M JFOM o) JO 9d00s 913 9913
UYOTYM ‘TOTSSTWIIO)) JIPNY 91} Aq paqriosord 97e TONEdYNII JOJ SIUIURSURITY
uoI3Ed1313499 0} IX3}U0d pue yoseoiddy

“CT10T F2qUWAON] JO pu9
91 [RUN UONEIJNII JIpne JOJ onp JOU ST YIIYM WIE[D S]JIJouad X T [I0UNO07) put
WGMwSOE $,[PUNOT) 913 O S9je[ad Mﬁ\NﬁON JOJ Wt MC%QNuwHSO wire[d [eurj 9y,

JUIWPTIWE JNOPIM

WO} POYNID PUE SWIE[ 91} P sansst Lue AJnuopr 10U PIp 9\ ‘NG'CLTF

Jo aanpuadxo 01 SunePI ¢T /7107 FeoA [BULUT} 91 JOJ SUINIIF PUL STWIE]D

JUEIS 997} 9} JO 0A) PIITIAD dABY M 39139 ipne si) Surredoard jo jurod oy 1y

“Surpuny 01 JUSWRNATD § [PUNOY) 1)

wiIFuod 03 $$9003d 91 jo 1red Jueyrodwr Ing [eury € sjuasardor pue porrod wrepd
O} F93J€ SYIUOW JUTU 03 XIs dwos 20e[d saxes A[eord&y voneoynzad sy 1 pounon)
oU3 Aq panTWIqNS SUIMYDT PUE SWIL 93U JO UTEIFD £JN190 03 parmbaz oxe o\
uoi3onpoajuj

SUINIOF PUEB SWITE[D JULIS JO UONEINIIN)

Page 15



4

€10¢ 1900100 | JoNeT HPNY [ENUUY | dT1MN UOIOYL JUe1) €10 ©

soorpuaddyy

soolpuaddy

O
—
o
(@)
Q)
ol



€l

002's

3 so04

€102 Joqwadeq ang
€102 1990100

€10z Jaqueldes
€10z Joquiaydes

€10c sunp

penssi ajeq

SUOIIOBSURI] | YA JO MBIASY
ERTTVETS

S92IAI9S 19Y)O0 10} S99 4

€10¢ 1900100 | JoNeT HPNY [ENUUY | dT1MN UOIOYL JUe1) €10 ©

uJodai uoneoien

Jeye Hpny [enuuy

Hoday aousl|isay |eloueuld — AIA
Hoday sbuipul4 upny

ueld upny
poday

panssi sjoday

‘(syuer3 oy 431790 01 popadu

JFom 3y} uo MQEUQQQOU 93] SAPEIIPUT 9] ULY] JOoMO] JO

Foy3IY oq P[Nod 99 [eury 91 2[qrssod ST 1] "TOqUIDAON] UT
yrom s)uesd 9 Jo uonajdwod Surpuad 993 2AREdIPUT 4)

£€6°06 £€6°06 $99} [el0L
059V by 05971 99} UOITEOILID JUBID
£82'9L £82'9. 994 Hpny
3 3

s99} |enjoy uejd Jipny Jad

so94

'S921AJIS JIpne-uou JO QOMwTwOHQ pue Jipne 243 JOJ Uom.dwd_u 99] 9y} MOT2q WIJUOId 9 X\

$99] pue pansst s370doy v x1puaddy

Page 17



)N 09 uojuioy}-juelh

'SJUaI[o 0} SBOINIBS
apinoid Jou S80p [BUOHBUISIU UOJUIOY ] JUBIL) “JBYJOUE BUO JO
1108 10 S8OIAIBS BU} 0} 8|qIsuodsal Jou ale YOIym ‘swily Jaquisw
Aq Apuspuadepur pasaniep ase saoiMeS "diysiauped apimplom

B JOU 8J& SWI} JaquawW 8y} pue [BUOIBUIBIU| UOJUIOY] JUBIS)
*$8JinbaJ 1X8JU00 8U) SB ‘SWllj JaqUIaW 80w IO 8UO O} Jajal pue
ojelado swuly Jaguuaw UOJUIOY ] JUBIS 8U} YIYMm Japun pueiq sy} o}
8Je ,UOJUIOY] JUBID), O} SBOUBISRY “(JEUOIBUIBIU| UOJUIOY] JUBID)
PIT [eUONBUISIU| UOJUIOY ] JUBIL) JO W JaGUIBW B S| UOUIOY ] JuelD)

‘diysssuped Ayjgey|
pajwI| € ‘g7 MN UojuIoy ] Juels) suesw ,uojuioy] Jueln,

‘Paniasel SyBl 1Y dTT MN UolWOoy L Juel €102 ©

uojuloy | Juelc) o

Page 18



1.1

21

2.2

3.1

Agenda ltem 6

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
27 NOVEMBER 2013

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

To report on internal audit work carried out during the period 1% July to 30™ Sept 2013, to
advise on overall progress against the Audit Plan and to report any emerging issues
requiring consideration.

BACKGROUND

This Committee is responsible for the implementation and active monitoring of audit
processes and actions, which includes performance against the annual audit plan,
reviewing quarterly internal audit progress reports and seeking responses and assurance
from management regarding audit recommendations that have not been accepted or those
not implemented within a reasonable timescale. The 2013/14 Audit Plan was approved at
Scrutiny Resources Committee on 20th March 2013.

The purpose of Internal Audit is to provide an independent and objective review of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s arrangements for internal control, risk
management and governance. The activities we audit are given an assurance rating as
follows:

Excellent * %k k kK The areas reviewed were found to be well controlled, internal
controls are in place and operating effectively. Risks against
achieving objectives are well managed.

Good * %k X Most of the areas reviewed were found to be adequately
controlled. Generally risks are well managed but a few areas
for improvement have been identified.

Some * %k There is a basic control framework in place, but not all risk

improvement are well managed and a number of controls are required to be

required strengthened.

Significant * * Most of the areas reviewed were not found to be adequately

improvement controlled. Risks are not well managed and require controls

required to be strengthened to ensure the achievement of system
objectives

Fundamental * Controls are seriously lacking or ineffective in their operation.

weakness No assurance can be given that the system’s objectives will
be achieved

WORK UNDERTAKEN

Internal Audit’s objective is to examine the Council’s financial and non-financial systems to
check that there are adequate internal controls in place to prevent loss due to frauds, errors
and inefficiency, and due attention is paid to corporate governance and risk management.

Internal Audit Progress Report — 2nd Quarter 2013-14.doc

Page 19



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

41

4.2

A summary of progress against the annual audit plan to date is shown at Appendix A,
together with the current status of each area for review and the outcomes of the review,
where completed.

The table is based on the audit plan and the systems grouped into the twelve strategic
purposes as per the Corporate Plan.

A further summary of the outcomes of audits completed can be found at Appendix B.

Progress against the annual audit plan is good, however, one member of the audit team is
due to go on maternity leave in December 2013, which will result in a reduction of
resources for the final quarter of 26 days. Details of the adjustments required to the
Internal Audit Plan 2013/14 have been presented in a separate report.

ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION
Fundamental Weakness

Debtors (2012/13) — the Internal Audit report issued 12/07/2013 identified a number of
weaknesses and using the audit assurance rating scheme the debtors system is rated as
having a Fundamental weakness. The reasons for this are:

= |nconsistent debt recovery guidance and policies

= Old debtor bank account details not deleted

= Many instances of multiple debtor accounts for the same person or business
= Services continuing to be supplied to individuals/business despite outstanding
debts

Errors in VAT coding

Fees being charged outside of the approved fees and charges

Delayed or no reminders for outstanding debts

Insufficient recovery action for outstanding debts

Debt recovery suppressions not reviewed

Debt write-offs not appropriately authorised

Since issuing this report the Council’s debt recovery systems have been undergoing a
systems review and we hope that the recommendations of our report will be taken into
account in designing the new system.

Recommendations Not Accepted
Housing Benefit Subsidy (2012/13) - report issued 11th July 2013 - Medium Risk

The testing identified one case where a DWP notification received on 18/02/13 advising of
a change of circumstances, affecting benefit entitlement, was not actioned until almost a
month later (12/03/13). A benefits figures report was obtained and found that as at 17 May
2013 there were 4,262 items of post outstanding, including 3,465 items more than seven
days old.

As a result the recommendation was that procedures should be reviewed and amended to
prevent backlogs of post containing important change of circumstances information.
Change of circumstances information needs to be promptly identified and actioned as
overpayments of benefit caused by change of circumstances not actioned promptly by the
Council can affect the HB subsidy received by the Council.

The Housing Benefit Manager, did not agree with this recommendation. She advised:

Internal Audit Progress Report — 2nd Quarter 2013-14.doc

Page 20



4.3

4.4

4.5

We do not feel that there is issue with the procedures themselves. The section is going
through a period of major change as part of our system review work as well as an increase
in the number of customers being seen on the front line as a result of welfare reform
changes. This has contributed to the backlog. We are mindful that the backlog does impact
on customers and subsidy and it is being managed and reduced as quickly as resources
allow.

This issue has been reported to the Senior Management Team.
Markets and Halls - report issued 4th July 2013 - Medium Risk

The testing identified that, copies of public liability certificates were not always requested
and checked by staff at the Corn Exchange when booking larger artists or events. As a
result the recommendation was that Markets and Halls should request public liability
certificates from hirers to ensure that the relevant public liability insurance cover is in place.

The Facilities and Markets Manager did not agree with this recommendation. He advised:

Some elements of the larger self-promoted events for example the venue and ECC owned
equipment are the responsibility of the Corn Exchange and so covered by ECC public
liability insurance.

The artists require their own public liability insurance to cover incidents for which they are
responsible for example incidents resulting from their own equipment or actions. However
to request evidence of cover is not the industry norm and would add to the difficulties in
confirming events which would make us less attractive to major promoters/artists (the
easier the contractual/booking process the more likely that artists/promoters would want to
work with the venue).

We do request PLI certificates from all regular hirers and those holding one-off events
which are viewed as a risk

This issue has been reported to the Senior Management Team.

Facilities Management - report issued 29th September 2013 - Medium Risk

The testing identified that the amount being charged for the hire of the Guildhall does not
always agree to the published Rate of Charges. As a result it was recommended that hire
fees should be in accordance with the Rate of Charges.

The Lord Mayor’s Support Officer, in conjunction with Corporate Manager Democratic/Civic
Support did not agree with this recommendation, they advised:

'the booking fee for a hire request is decided upon on a case by case basis and will not
necessatrily be in accordance with the standard fees. Consideration is given as to the
organisation wanting to hire the room and the reason for the hire, for example in order to
forge greater links with local charities, faith groups and organisations, it may be appropriate
to charge a lesser fee. Additionally, some organisations may have a limited budget but
because of the potential for further bookings resulting from the original hire, a lesser fee is
acceptable.’

This issue has been reported to the Senior Management Team.

During the second quarter of this year, there are no instances of management accepting a
recommendation which was not subsequently implemented within a reasonable timescale.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Internal Audit Progress Report — 2nd Quarter 2013-14.doc

Page 21



5.1 That the Internal Audit Progress Report for the second quarter of the year 2013/14 be
noted.

5.2 That the Committee decide whether the audit report recommendations not accepted by
management, as detailed in section 4 above, are acceptable risks to the Council.

AUDIT MANAGERS

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended)
Background papers used in compiling this report:-

None

Internal Audit Progress Report — 2nd Quarter 2013-14.doc

Page 22



PROGRESS OF 2013/14 AUDIT PLAN AS AT 30/09/13

EXETER CITY COUNCIL
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

APPENDIX A

Number of
. Budget Actual Report Direction of | Assurance findings
Audit Area Days Days Status travel since Rating
last audit High | Med | Low

Leader
‘A stronger city’

People Management 30 18.4 In progress

External Funding & Grants 10 3.3 Completed & Good 2
Enabling Services
‘A well run Council’
‘Maintain our property assets of the city’

Main Accounting 2013-14 25 1.3

- Budget Setting & VAT Completed & Good 1
- System Management Start Q4

Start Q1

- Year end processes 14/15

Income Management 22 5.2 Start Q4

Creditors 55 26.5 In progress

Debtors 12 12.2 Start Q4

Insurance 5 0.9 Start Q4

ICT 40 22.8

- Operations Management In progress

- System Security Start Q4

Business Continuity 10 0 Start Q4

Risk Management 10 1.1 Start Q3

Contracts and Procurement 30 9.2 Ongoing

- . Some
Facilities Management No previous | .
(Guildhall Private Hire) 7 8.0 Completed report |mprov_ement 8
required

Counter Fraud/Anti-Fraud 20 3.8 Start Q3

Corporate governance 15 3.4 Start Q3

Information Governance 15 3.5 Ongoing

External Audit & NFI 5 8.6 Completed & Good 1

Housing and Customer Access

‘Provide suitable housing’
‘Be a good landlord’

‘Help me with my financial problem’

‘Make it easy for me to pay you’

Page 23




Housing 68 31.0
Some
- Right to Buy Completed Q Improvement
required
- Home Contents Insurance In progress
Housing Benefits 60 41.7
. Some
- Welfare Support payments Completed No previous improvement
report .
required
- Housing Benefit Subsidy Start Q3
Council Tax 30 13.3 In progress
NDR 11 0.7 Start Q3
Environment, Health & Wellbeing
‘Keep place looking good’
‘Keep me/my environment safe’
Health & Safety 12 0.7 | Withdrawn
No Some
Allotments 7 9.3 Final previous improvement
report required
Bereavement Services 8 8.7 Completed & Good
Deferred to
Licensing 7 0.2 14/15
Fleet Management 7 3.0 In progress
Deferred to
Sustainability 8 0.8 14/15
Economy and Culture
‘Provide great things for me to see and do’
‘Help me run a successful business’
Museums Service 14 24 In progress
No
Markets and Halls 7 6.0 Completed previous Good
report
No
Leisure Contract 7 11.1 Completed previous Good
report
Car Parks 8 04 Start Q4
City Development
‘Deliver good development’
Planning Control 10 1.8 Start Q3
Building Control 8 0.5 Start Q3
Land Charges 5.3 Completed & Good
Contingency (special/frauds) 50 23.3
Total 639 326.4

Results of reports finalised during 2013/14 relating to 2012/13 — see Appendix B for summary of reports

Page 24




Direction of Number of findings

. Report . Assurance g9

Audit Area travel since .
Status last audit Rating H M L
Main Accounting 2012-13
Part 2 Final Accounts Completed & Good 0 ! 4
Creditors Duplicate Payments Completed I Good 0 4 2
2012-13
Fundamental
Debtors 2012-13 Completed & Weakness 0 11 19
@ Some
HB Subsidy 12/13 Completed improvement 1 3 9
required

Page 25




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



/2 abed

APPENDIX B
EXETER CITY COUNCIL
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Internal Audit Summary of Work Completed
July to September 2013/14

| Audit Area

| Summary

end)

Assurance rating:
Good * * * %

Main Accounting 2012/13 (Year

This audit is carried out in two parts. The first part is usually undertaken in July/August and includes a review of budget setting
process for the forthcoming year and VAT. The second part is undertaken after closedown of the accounts to enable the year
end processes to be reviewed and to ensure that transactions from the whole year are tested. This audit includes a review of
the accuracy of financial records, journals and internal transactions, suspense and holding accounts, bank reconciliations,
capital accounting and final accounts.

A total of 1 medium risk and 4 low risk recommendations were made as a result of the audit, all of which were accepted by
management. The medium risk finding was in respect of the accuracy of the asset register held and the resulting
recommendation was that Finance should review the way in which they record information about the asset register and identify
a method which is more robust and less prone to inadvertent changes. Acting Assistant Director Finance advised that it is
intended to implement the Fixed Asset module of EFINS (the Accounting system) by March 2014.

Creditor Duplicate Payments
2012/13

Assurance rating:
Good * * * %

A matching exercise was conducted to identify duplicate payments. It did not test to see if our suppliers were invoicing us twice
for the same items on different invoices as this is to be tested in Autumn 2013.

For the period 01/04/12 to 31/03/13, 22 duplicate payments were identified to a value of £2392, for which refunds have now
been obtained.

A total of 4 medium risk and 2 low risk recommendations were made as a result of the audit, all of which were accepted by
management. The medium risk findings all relate to human errors and Finance have issued reminders to staff about the
importance of accuracy.

HB Subsidy 2012/13

Assurance rating:
Good * * * %

This audit sought to provide assurance that housing benefit applications had been processed in accordance with Housing
Benefit subsidy regulations during 2012/13. A total of 1 high risk and 3 medium risk recommendations were made of which all
but one medium risk recommendation were accepted. The high risk finding relates to incorrect benefit entitlement calculations.

Debtors 2012/13

Assurance rating:
Fundamental Weakness *

This system has been identified to have a fundamental weakness and details are included in the main report.

External Funding and Grants

Assurance rating:
Good * * *x %

The Council receives a number of different grants and external funding sources and an audit of these was conducted. The only
matters arising related to a lack of awareness by some managers regarding specific grant conditions, although it should be
noted that no conditions were broken. An email has been sent to staff to remind them to ensure that they familiarise

themselves with the conditions of any grant income they are responsible for.




gz abed

Main Accounting 2013/14 (Budget
setting and VAT)

Assurance rating:
Good * * * %

This audit is now carried out in three parts. This is the first part for 2013/14 accounts and checks the budget setting process
and, for the first time this year, the management of VAT. The second part of the testing will take place in January 2014 and the
third part, relating to the closure of the 2013-14 accounts will take place in June 2014.

A total of 1 medium risk and 2 low risk recommendations were made as a result of the audit, all of which were accepted by
management. The medium risk finding was in respect of staff duties not being regularly rotated to other members of staff and
the resulting recommendation was that the duty of updating the Collaborative Planning module is regularly rotated amongst
Finance staff to ensure expertise is spread throughout the team. Acting Assistant Director Finance advised that the team is
about to be restructured and this will be implemented as part of the restructure.

Facilities Management
- Guildhall Private Hire

Assurance rating:
Some improvement required
* % Kk

Upon the request of the Corporate Manager Democratic and Civic Support, when planning the 2013/14 audit work, a review of
the Guildhall private hire was conducted.

A total of 8 medium and 3 low risk recommendations were made as a result of the audit and all but one of the
recommendations were accepted. Medium risk recommendations relate to hire fees, use of electronic diary/ booking system
and streamlining income receipt procedures.

National Fraud Initiative 2012/13

Assurance rating:
Good * * * %

Since 1996 the Audit Commission has run the National Fraud Initiative (NFI), an exercise that matches electronic data within
and between public and private sector bodies to prevent and detect fraud. This includes police authorities, local probation
boards, fire and rescue authorities as well as local councils and a number of private sector bodies.

Any matches identified are referred back to the relevant local authority to investigate and Internal Audit administers the returned
data matches on behalf of Exeter City Council. All of the matches identified were investigated and none were found to be
significant.

During the exercise it was noted that the Council Tax Section did not provide any data to the Audit Commission for them to
interrogate and identify any potential fraudulent single occupier discount claimants, therefore, it was recommended that the
Council conducts it's own exercise in the near future. It was noted that that from a cost perspective Exeter City Council has to
bear the cost of this exercise, however, any fraudulent claims would net the council only 18% of any additional monies
collected, with Devon County Council netting the majority of the additional income. Consideration should be given to
requesting Devon County Council to contribute, if not fully fund, any such exercise.

Housing — Right to Buy

Assurance rating:

Some improvement required
* % Kk

Right to Buy gives eligible people who live in council properties in England the right to buy their home at a discount (subject to
all conditions being met). The scheme is open to people who are secure tenants of a local council and who have spent at least
5 years as a public sector tenant. The audit included a review of Right to Buy applications, eligibility, valuation, discounts, sales
(including leasehold properties), records and reconciliations.

A total of 1 high risk, 6 medium risk and 7 low risk recommendations were made as a result of the audit, all of which were
accepted by management. The 1 high risk findings was in relation to an incorrect calculation of the applicant’s qualifying period
resulting in an incorrect calculation of the discount awarded. The applicant was awarded £15,120 too much discount.
Legislation regarding the calculation of an applicant’s qualifying period is complex and on this occasion was not interpreted
correctly. A number of recommendations were made including:

o providing further training to staff involved in the process on the legislation
o that calculations are checked by a second employee




6c abed

o clarification should be sought from Legal Services if there is any doubt over how qualifying periods should be calculated

Welfare Support Payments

Assurance rating:

Some improvement required
* %

From 1 April 2013, Exeter City Council, became responsible for administering a scheme of local welfare support (LWS) via a
funding agreement with Devon County Council. This is an interim arrangement for a period of two years. The council has
signed a partnership agreement with Devon County Council which specifies the agreed terms, the distribution of local welfare
support.

The Devon Local Government Steering group have specified that the local welfare support scheme is intended to achieve three
strategic outcomes:

* Increased self-reliance and resilience

* Quick and effective support for those with high priority needs

» Help for people to establish themselves in, or remain in the community

The audit sought assurance that the council was complying with the terms of the partnership agreement and to review the
effectiveness of the internal controls in place.

A total of 8 medium risk and 2 low risk recommendations were made. All recommendations have been accepted. The
medium risk recommendations relate to the introduction of password protection for certain data sets, checking for previous
applications, reconciliation of Co-Op vouchers issued, accurately recording payments made on the relevant decision sheet and
reconciling total expenditure.

Bereavement Services

Assurance rating:
Good * * * %

The Council currently has three cemeteries, Higher Cemetery located in Heavitree, Exwick Cemetery and Topsham Cemetery.
Each of the cemeteries offer full burials, burial of ashes, a non-denomination chapel and a range of memorial options.

The audit included a review of burial services, renewal of exclusive rights and memorials, arranging a burial service or
memorial, installation and checking of memorials and banking of income. A total of 3 medium risk and 4 low risk
recommendations were made all of which were agreed by management.

Markets and Halls

Assurance rating:
Good * * * %

The Council operates two event venues, the Corn Exchange and the Matford centre.

This audit reviewed the internal controls and processes in place for the management of both. A total of 2 medium and 4 low
risk recommendations were made. All but one medium risk recommendation were accepted by management.

Leisure Contract

Assurance rating:
Good * * * %

Parkwood Leisure was awarded a 10 year contract to operate all council owned leisure facilities with effect from September
2010. The main responsibility of the contractor is the successful management, maintenance and operation of the facilities in
line with the Council's corporate vision and priorities for the service. The contractor has to promote and encourage the widest
use of the facilities by providing a substantial and varied programme of activities at the each of the sites, designed to attract
customers from all age groups, abilities, ethnic groups and social classes.

The scope of the audit included a review of the service provider's compliance with the terms of the contract, payments under
the contract, performance measurement and the requirement for Parkwood Leisure to implement a service improvement plan.
A total of 6 medium risk and 3 low risk recommendations were made, all of which were accepted by management.

Land Charges

Land charges / Local Authority Searches form part of the conveyancing process when buying and selling houses. Land charges




0¢ abed

Assurance rating:
Good * * * %

/ Local Authority Searches are designed to ensure that purchasers of properties are not caught unawares by obligations on
those properties. Searches are submitted by solicitors to the Council to enquire what restrictions etc there are on a particular
property.

The audit reviewed the controls and processes in place. A total of 1 medium and 2 low risk recommendations were made, all of
which were accepted by management. The medium risk finding related to document retention.




Agenda ltem 7

EXETER CITY COUNCIL

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
27 NOVEMBER 2013

REVISION OF INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2013/14

1.  PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To seek the Committee’s approval for the revision of the 2013/14 Internal Audit
Plan.

2.  BACKGROUND

2.1 The Internal Audit Annual Plan was approved by the Scrutiny Resources
Committee at its meeting on 20 March 2013.

2.2 As aresult of one of the members of the Internal Audit Team taking maternity
leave from December 2013 the resources available will be reduced and
therefore it will be necessary to make adjustments to the audit plan.

2.3 The overall reduction in the number of audit days for the last quarter of this
financial year will be 26 days.

2.4 |tis proposed to adjust the Audit Plan for 2013/14 to meet this shortfall as
follows:

Health and Safety — to be withdrawn from the plan as a full audit will be
undertaken next year as part of the rolling plan = 11.3 days saving
Licensing — to be deferred to 13/14 = 6.8 days saving

Sustainability — to be deferred to 13/14 = 7.2 days saving

Total saving = 25.3 days, remainder to be met from contingency time

3. RECOMMENDATION

3.1 That the revised 2013/14 Internal Audit Plan be approved.
AUDIT MANAGERS

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR FINANCE
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended)
Background papers used in compiling this report:-

None

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



1.1

21

2.2

3.2

3.3

3.4

Agenda Iltem 8

EXETER CITY COUNCIL

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
27 NOVEMBER 2013

PROTOCOL FOR RECORDING AT COUNCIL MEETINGS

PURPOSE OF REPORT

This report asks Members to consider adopting a Protocol to regulate filming and
recording of public meetings by members of the public.

BACKGROUND

In June 2013 the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG)
published a guide: “Your council’s cabinet — going to its meetings, seeing how it
works; a guide for local people’, which refers to the public’s right to film Council
meetings. The Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government has
recently been championing the right of individuals to do so.

In response to this guidance Council on 15 October 2013 approved the removal of
Standing Order no.30 so as to allow for the recording of the Council’s meetings and
for the constitution be amended accordingly. Executive on 1 October 2103 resolved
to instruct officers to draw up the necessary protocols to protect the wishes of
members of the public who do not want to be filmed during the recording/filming of
meetings of the Council and its committees.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

The Council supports the principles of openness and transparency in the way it
conducts its meetings. The Protocol adheres to these principles and provides clear
guidance to members of the public in order to ensure that any recording is not
disruptive, distracting or inhibiting the meeting in any way.

The Protocol asks those wishing to record a meeting to contact the Corporate
Manager Democratic and Civic Support or his representative as early as possible
before the start of the meeting, and in no circumstances later than noon on the day of
the meeting so that they can be made aware of the provisions of the Protocol. Given
that most mobile phones allow audio recording, the taking of photographs and video
recording, it is likely that someone will decide just before, or during the meeting to
make a recording. Whilst it is very difficult to stop this happening, the Protocol sets
out the implications for actions in breach of the Protocol, for example if someone fails
to comply with the Protocol they will be refused permission to record future meetings.

The Lord Mayor/Chair will make an announcement at the beginning of each meeting
advising whether any requests to record the meeting have been received and
referring people to the Protocol, copies of which will be available at each meeting.

The Protocol also covers social media reporting of meetings.

Page 33



4 RECOMMENDATION
4.1 That Members be asked to adopt the Protocol appended to the report.

CORPORATE MANAGER DEMOCRATIC AND CIVIC SUPPORT

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended)
Background papers used in compiling this report:-

None

Page 34



EXETER CITY COUNCIL

PROTOCOL FOR RECORDING AND USE OF SOCIAL MEDIA AT COUNCIL AND

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

2.1

2.2

COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Introduction

This Protocol provides guidance to members of the public or press who wish
to photograph or record proceedings at any of the Council’'s meetings.

The Council supports the principles of openness and transparency in the way
it conducts its meetings. Sound recording, photographing, filming, and use of
social media at meetings which are held in public is permitted:

(a) subject to the provisions of this Protocol; and

(b) provided that the Lord Mayor/Chair is satisfied that it will not be
disruptive or distracting to the good order and conduct of the meeting.

No restrictions will be placed on anyone using social media at a public
meeting subject to the limitations regarding photography and audio/visual
recording set out in this Protocol.

No audio/visual recording will be allowed during any parts of meetings where
the press and public have been excluded during consideration of business
which is confidential or exempt as defined by the Local Government Act 1972.

Meetings which take the form of hearings may not be suitable for recording
due to the nature of some of the evidence given at the hearing. It will be at
the Chair’s discretion to determine whether the recording of a particular
hearing will be permitted.

Failure to follow the provisions within this Protocol will result in the Lord
Mayor/Chair refusing to allow the proceedings to be photographed or
recorded.

For the purposes of this Protocol ‘recording’ includes sound recording,
photographing, filming, and use of social media. Social media includes, but is
not limited to Twitter, Facebook and blogs.

Before the meeting

Those wishing to record proceedings at a meeting are advised to contact the
Corporate Manager Democratic and Civic Support or his representative
before the meeting and in no circumstances any later than noon on the day of
the meeting so that arrangements can be discussed and the agreement of the
Lord Mayor/Chair can be sought.

The name, organisation (if applicable) and contact details of the person

wishing to record proceedings are required and should be provided before the
meeting if possible.

Page 35



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

4.1

4.2

4.3

At the meeting

Notices will be displayed in the meeting room advising that proceedings may
be recorded, and the Lord Mayor/Chair will make an announcement to this
effect at the beginning of the meeting if a request has been received.

Members of the public attending a meeting to ask a question, present a
petition or make a representation will be deemed to have given consent to
being photographed or recorded. Only in exceptional circumstances, which
must have been discussed with the Corporate Manager Democratic & Civic
Support and Lord Mayor/Chair before the meeting, will applications not to be
photographed or recorded be considered. Such circumstances could include
protection of the individuals identity due to court proceedings etc.

Members of the public seated in the public seating area who actively object,
should not be photographed, filmed or recorded as long as this does not
undermine the broader transparency of the meeting.

Photography or filming must take place from a fixed position in the meeting
room approved by the Lord Mayor/Chair to ensure that the view of
Councillors, officers, public and press, is not obstructed and so as not to
disrupt the business of the meeting.

The use of flash photography or additional lighting will only be permitted if
agreed in advance with the Corporate Manager Democratic and Civic Support
and the Lord Mayor/Chair.

Photography or audio/visual recording will be stopped if the Lord Mayor/Chair
feels it is disrupting or inhibiting the meeting in any way or any pre-meeting
agreement has been breached.

If someone refuses to stop recording when requested to do so the Lord
Mayor/Chair will ask the person to leave the meeting. If the person refuses to
leave, the Lord Mayor/Chair will adjourn the meeting or make other
appropriate arrangements for the meeting to continue without disruption.

Anyone asked to leave a meeting because they have refused to comply with
the Lord Mayor/Chair’s request to do so, could be refused permission to
record future meetings.

After the meeting

Photographs and audio/visual recordings must not be edited in a way that

could lead to misinterpretation of the proceedings. This includes refraining
from editing the views being expressed in a way that may ridicule or show

lack of respect towards those being photographed or recorded.

Anyone making such recordings publicly available should consider any
potential data protection and human rights implications of individuals they
have recorded.

If someone fails to comply with this Protocol the Lord Mayor/Chair can refuse
to allow this person to record any future meetings.

Page 36



4.4 The responsibility for how any photographs or audio/visual recording is used
rests with the person who made the recording and not the Council.

Notes:

Whether or not you are able to attend a meeting, you can make use of these facilities
currently available:
¢ Free public WiFi in the Civic Centre and committee rooms. User name:
public password: customer access
¢ Free access to public agendas, meeting and councillor information, minutes,
decision details at www.exeter.gov.uk/committees
¢ Free iPad and Android apps for reading and annotating public agendas and
minutes: search iTunes or Google Play for “mod.gov”
e Follow Exeter City Council on Twitter @ExeterCouncil and like at
facebook.com/ExeterCityCouncil

If you have any questions please contact Democratic Services (Committees) 01392
265111.

Members of the press are asked to contact the Media Relations Officer on 01392
265103.

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

23

24

Agenda ltem 9

EXETER CITY COUNCIL

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
27 NOVEMBER 2013

MEMBER’S CODE OF CONDUCT UPDATE
PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

To remind members of the obligations on them to comply with the requirement of
Exeter City Council’s Code of Conduct for Members set out as Appendix 1 to this
report.

To acquaint members with the Department of Communities and Local Government
recent Guidance “Openness and transparency on personal interest” dated
September 2013 set out at Appendix 4 to this report.

To remind members of the provisions of Section 106 of the Local Government
Finance Act 1992.

Register of Discloseable Pecuniary Interests:

Members are required by the Localism Act 2011 to register their Pecuniary Interests.
These are:

* Employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried out for profit or gain.

* Sponsorship for or payment of expenses incurred by the member including

elections.

Contracts for goods, services or works with the City council.

Land in Exeter in which the member has a beneficial interest.

Licence over land owned by the City Council

Tenancies between the council and an organisation in which the member has a

beneficial interest.

* Securities or shares with a value of at least £25,000 or more than 1/100 of the
total issued share.

Members are reminded that they are also required to register their spouse and civil
partner’s (or any person with whom they are living with as husband or wife or civil
partner) Pecuniary Interest where they are aware of them.

Pecuniary interest so disclosed will be maintained by the Monitoring Officer Baan Al-
Khafaji and published on the Council’s website.

The Monitoring Officer will endeavour to remind members to update their disclosure
every six months using the form set out in Appendix 2 to this report. However,
Members are reminded that the obligation to disclose interest rests with them.
Disclosure of any new interest must be made to the Monitoring officer within 28 days.

Where a member discloses an interest, he/she must not participate in any discussion

or vote on the matter at the meeting and leave the room. It is a criminal offence for a
member, without reasonable excuse, to fail to notify the Monitoring Officer of a

Page 39



3.1

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or participates in any discussion or vote at a meeting
where he/she had a disclosable pecuniary interest.

A Member guilty of an offence may be liable, on conviction in the Magistrates Court,
to a fine not exceeding Level 5 on the standard scale (currently £5,000).

Declaration of Interest under Part 2 of Exeter City Council’s Code of Conduct.

Members are reminded that they are required to declare at any Council meeting any
interest where they have:

“.... any other interest in any business of the Council where it relates to the well
being or financial position of the member, his/her friend, relative or close associate
where a member of the public, knowing the relevant facts, would reasonably think the
existence of the interest in question is likely to affect the member’s judgment of the
public interest.”

When making such a declaration, Members are asked to complete the form prepared
by the Monitoring Officer for this purpose set out in Appendix 3 to this report.

Department for Communities and Local Government’s new Guidance on
Personal Interests.

The new Local Government Minister Brendon Lewis has circulated amended
Guidance on the registration and declaration of member’s interest, highlighting the
issue of trade union membership. This new Guidance is attached to this report as
Appendix 4.

Unlike the old legislation, part 1 of the Localism Act does not empower the Secretary
of state to issue statutory Guidance, so the Minister’s guidance does not have the
force of law.

The Legal requirement obliging members to register Pecuniary Interest is set out in
the Relevant Authorities (Discloseable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012. This
lists the Pecuniary Interests which elected members must place on the public register
or declare at meetings. These are set out in brief in paragraph 2.1 above.

The definition of Pecuniary Interests includes “sponsorship in respect of any
expenses incurred for or payment of expenses incurred by the member in carrying
out duties as a member, or towards a members election expenses”. The regulations
then say “This included any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the
meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.

It is the Monitoring Officer view that this latest Guidance requiring members to
declare their trade union membership goes beyond the legal requirement set out in
the Relevant Authorities (Discloseable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012. The
new Guidance states:

“ all sitting councillors need to register their declarable interests — both declarable

pecuniary interests and other interest that must be declared and registered as
required by your authorities code, or your duty to act in conformity with the seven
principles of public life such as your membership of any Trade Union”

2

Page 40



4.6

5.1

5.2

5.3

6.1

6.2

6.3

However, it is the Monitoring Officer view that this Guidance cannot oblige a member
to register or declare trade union membership if the member does not receive
sponsorship since the legislation does not require members to do so.

Of course it is open to members to decide whether to amend the Code of Conduct to
include the requirement to disclose membership in any trade union and members are
asked to consider whether they consider it prudent to do so.

Prohibition on members from voting on the budget when in council tax arrears.
Section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992.

Members are reminded that Section 106, Local Government Finance Act 1992 is still
in force. This piece of legislation prohibits members from voting on the budget,
council tax base or council tax levels where they are in Council tax arrears of two or
more months.

Section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies at any time

to a member of a local authority (or a member of a committee of a local

authority or of a joint committee of two or more local authorities) if, at

that time, a sum in respect of council tax has become payable by the

member and has remained unpaid for at least two months. It effectively

bars a member from voting on financial matters at any meeting of the authority, its
committees or its Executive at which any of the following are considered:

(a) Any calculation required by Chapter Ill, IV or Part 1 of the act (i.e.
budget requirement, tax base and tax);

(b) Any recommendation, resolution or other decision which might affect
the making of such calculation; or

(c) The exercise of any of the functions in relation to the
administration, collection or enforcement of the council tax

The member is required at the meeting to disclose that Section 106 applies

to him/her as soon as practicable after the start of the meeting, and

is thereafter not permitted to vote on any question with respect to such matter(s).
Failure to make such a declaration followed by taking part in the vote is a criminal
offence triabal in the Magistrates Court which may result in a fine up to £1,000.

RECOMMENDED that:-
Members note the content of this report.

Members consider whether they wish to amend the Code of Conduct to expressly
require Members to declare membership of trade unions.

Members note the prohibition on taking part in setting of the council tax when in

arrears with their own council tax contrary to Section 106 of the Local Government
Finance Act 1992.

Page 41



CORPORATE MANAGER - LEGAL SERVICES & MONITORING OFFICER
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended)
Background papers used in compiling this report:-

None

Page 42



Appendix 1

Exeter City Council

Code of Conduct

For Members and Co-opted Members

Together with

The Rules on Registration and Declaration of

Pecuniary and other Interests

Page 43



Appendix 1

Exeter City Council

Member’s Code of Conduct

Introduction

Pursuant to section 27 of the Localism Act 2011, Exeter City Council (‘the
Council’) has adopted this Code of Conduct to promote and maintain high
standards of behaviour by its members and co-opted members whenever they
conduct the business of the Council including the business of the office to
which they were elected or appointed or when they claim to act or give the

impression of acting as a representative of the Council.

This Code of Conduct aims to facilitate openness and accountability
necessary to reinforce public confidence in the way members perform their

public duties.
Definitions

For the purposes of this Code, a ‘co-opted member’ is a person who is not a
member of the Council but who is either a member of any committee or sub-
committee of the Council, or a member of, and represents the Council on any
joint committee or joint sub-committee of the Council, and who is entitled to
vote on any question that falls to be decided at any meeting of that committee

or sub-committee.

For the purposes of this Code, a ‘meeting’ is a meeting of the Council, any of

its committees, sub-committees, joint committees or joint sub-committees.

For the purposes of this Code, and unless otherwise expressed, a reference
to a member of the Council includes a co-opted member of the Council.

Page 44



Appendix 1

PART 1

1. GENERAL PRINCIPLES OF CONDUCT

In carrying out their duties and in exercising the functions of the Council or

otherwise acting as a councillor, members are expected to observe the

following general principles of conduct. The following principles will be taken

into consideration when any allegation is received of breaches of the

provisions of the Code.

Selflessness:

Integrity:

Objectivity:

Accountability:

Openness:

Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the
public interest. They should not do so in order to gain
financial or other material benefits for themselves, their

family or their friends.

Holders of public office should not place themselves
under any financial or other obligation to outside
individuals or organisations that might seek to influence

them in performance of their official duties.

In carrying out public business, including making public
appointments, awarding contracts, or recommending
individuals for rewards and benefits, holders of public

office should make choices on merit.

Holders of public office are accountable for their decisions
and actions to the public and must submit themselves to

whatever scrutiny is appropriate to their office.

Holders of public office should be as open as possible
about all the decisions and actions they take. They should
give reasons for their decisions and restrict information

only when the wider public interest clearly demands.

Page 45



Appendix 1

Honesty: Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private
interests relating to their public duties and to take steps to
resolve any conflicts arising in a way that protect the
public interest.

Leadership: Holders of public office should promote and support these

principles by leadership and example.
2. EXPECTATIONS OF CONDUCT

1. Members shall at all times conduct themselves in a manner which will
tend to maintain and strengthen the public’s trust and confidence in the

integrity of the Council.

2. Members shall base their conduct on consideration of the public interest
and avoid conflict between personal interest and the public interest and
resolve any conflict between the two in favour of the public interest.

3. RULES OF CONDUCT

When a member of the Council acts, claims to act or gives the impression of

acting as a representative of the Council, he/she shall comply with the

following rules.

1.  Behave in such a way that a reasonable person would regard as

respectful.

2.  He/she shall not act in a way which a reasonable person would regard

as bullying or intimidatory.

3. He/she shall not seek to improperly confer an advantage or disadvantage

on any person.

Page 46



Appendix 1

He/she shall use the resources of the Council in accordance with its

requirements.

He/she shall not disclose information which is confidential or where

disclosure is prohibited by law.

He/she shall have regard to any relevant advice provided by the Council’s
Chief Financial Officer and the Monitoring Officer.

He/she shall co-operate at all times with any investigation into their

conduct.

Page 47



Appendix 1

PART 2

REGISTRATION, DISCLOSURE AND DUTIES IN RESPECT OF MEMBERS’
INTERESTS

1. REGISTRATION OF INTERESTS

Members shall fulfii conscientiously the requirement in respect of the
registration of interests in the Register of Members’ Interests and where it is
appropriate to do so, shall always draw attention to any relevant interest in any
proceedings of the Council, the Executive (or any committee or sub committee),

or in any communication with the Council, its members or officers.

APPENDIX 1
DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST (DPls)
These declarations include the relevant members’ interest including any
interest of which the member is aware relating to his/her:
e spouse or
e civil partner or
e of any person with whom he/she is living as a husband or wife or civil
partner.
e Disclosable pecuniary interest or prescribed by Regulations and fall

within the following headings;

1. Employment, Office, Trade, Profession or Vocation

Please give details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried
on for profit or gain.

Page 48



Appendix 1

2. Sponsorship

Please give details of any payment or provision of any financial benefit (other than
from Exeter City Council) made or provided in respect of any expenses incurred by
the member in carrying out duties as a member or towards the election expenses of
the member.

This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the
meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.

3. Contracts: for Goods, Works or Services with the Council

Please give details of any contracts for goods, works or services you (or firm or
company by which you are employed or which you own or in which you have a
beneficial interest) have with Exeter City Council

4. Landholdings in the Area

Please give the address or other description (sufficient to identify the location) of
any land or property in Exeter City Council’s area in which you have a beneficial
interest, indicating whether you are the owner, lessee or tenant.

You must include the house you live in and for example an allotment you own or
use.

5. Licences

Please give details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land within
Exeter City Council’'s area where such licence is for a period longer than one
month.

6. Corporate tenancies

Please give details of any tenancy where land is leased or licensed from Exeter City
Council by you or any body, firm or company by which you are employed or which
you own or in which you have a beneficial interest.

7. Securities: Interests in Companies

Please give details of body which has a place of business or owns land in Exeter
City Council’s area and in which you have a beneficial interest (a shareholding) of
more than:

e £25,000 (nominal value) or more than 1/100th of the total share issue of that
body (whichever is the lower) or
e if there is more than one class of share, the total nominal value of shares in

Page 49




Appendix 1

any class of that body of more than 1/100th of the total shares of that class.

Note: It is not necessary to declare the nature or size of the holding, simply the
name of the company or other body.

Page 50




Appendix 1

APPENDIX 2 - OTHER INTERESTS

A member must declare any other interest in any business of the Council
where it relates to the well being or financial position of the member, his/her
friend, relative or close associate where a member of the public, knowing the
relevant facts, would reasonably think the existence of the interest in question

is likely to affect the member’s judgment of the public interest.

REGISTRATION OF INTERESTS

1. Within 28 days of this Code being adopted by the Council, or the
member’s election or the co-opted member’'s appointment (where that is
later), he/she shall register all disclosable pecuniary interests which fall

within the categories set out in Appendix 1.

2. Upon the re-election of a member or the re-appointment of a co-opted
member, he/she shall within 28 days re-register any disclosable
pecuniary interests described in Appendix 1.

3. A member shall register any change to his/her registerable pecuniary
interests or new interests falling within the definition set out Appendix 1
within 28 days of becoming aware of it.

4. A member need only declare on the public Register of Interests the
existence but not the details of any interest which the Monitoring Officer
agrees is a ‘sensitive interest’. A sensitive interest is one which, if
disclosed on a public register, could lead the member or a person

connected with the member to be subject to violence or intimidation.

Page 51



Appendix 1

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

1. Where a matter arises at a meeting which relates to a Pecuniary
Interest which is declarable in Appendix 1, the member shall not
participate in a discussion or vote on the matter. The member shall
withdraw from the room at the commencement of the consideration of
that business. He/she only has to declare what his/her interest is if it is
not already entered in the Member’s Register of Interests or if he/she

has not notified the Monitoring Officer of it.

2. Where a matter arises at a meeting which relates to a Pecuniary
Interest in Appendix 1 which is a sensitive interest, the member shall
not participate in a discussion or vote on the matter. The member
shall withdraw from the room at the commencement of the
consideration of that business. If it is a sensitive interest which has
not already been disclosed to the Monitoring Officer, the member shall

disclose he/she has an interest but not the nature of it.

3. Where a matter arises at a meeting which relates to "other Interests”
declarable under Appendix 2, the member shall disclose the nature of
the interest and withdraw from the meeting. He/she may speak on the
matter before withdrawing only if members of the public are also
allowed to speak at the meeting. |If it is a ‘sensitive interest’ the
member shall declare the interest but not the nature of the interest.

Page 52



Appendix 1

DISPENSATIONS

On a written request, the Council’s Monitoring Officer may grant to a member
a dispensation to participate in a discussion and vote on a matter at a meeting
even if he/she has an interest in Appendices 1 and/or 2 where the Monitoring
Officer believes that:
e the number of members otherwise prohibited from taking part in
the meeting would impede the transaction of the business; or
e it is in the interests of the inhabitants in the Council’'s area to
allow the member to take part or

e it is otherwise appropriate to grant a dispensation.

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 54



Appendix 2

Notification by Exeter City Council Member
of

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (“DPI”)

LOCALISM ACT 2011, s.30
The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012

I, (full name)

of address

Member of Exeter City Council,
GIVE NOTICE that | have the following Disclosable Pecuniary Interest(s).

IMPORTANT: Pecuniary Interests are disclosable if they are your interests or
that of a “relevant person” i.e. your spouse or civil partner, a person with
whom you are living as husband and wife, or a person with whom you are
living as if you were civil partners (all of whom are referred to as “relevant
persons”) and you are aware that the other person has the interest.

Please read the definitions section at the end of this form. Give details as
below, stating “none” where appropriate.

1. EMPLOYMENT, OFFICE, TRADE, PROFESSION OR VOCATION
Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or
gain.

Yourself

Corporate/monitoring officer/pecuniaryinterestsoct13

Page 55




Appendix 2

Other relevant person

2. SPONSORSHIP

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the
authority) made or provided within the 12 months prior to this notification in
respect of any expenses incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a
member, or towards your election expenses.

This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the
meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.

Yourself

Other relevant person

3. CONTRACTS

Any contract which is made between you or another relevant person (or a
body in which you or another relevant person has a beneficial interest) and
the authority:

(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be
executed; and

(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Yourself

Corporate/monitoring officer/pecuniaryinterestsoct13

Page 56




Appendix 2

Other relevant person

4. LAND
Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the authority.

Yourself

Other relevant person

5. LICENCES
Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the
authority for a month or longer.

Yourself

Other relevant person

Corporate/monitoring officer/pecuniaryinterestsoct13

Page 57




Appendix 2

6. CORPORATE TENANCIES

Any tenant where (to your knowledge) —

(a) the landlord is the authority; and

(b) the tenant is a body in which you or another relevant person has a
beneficial interest.

Yourself

Other relevant person

7. SECURITIES

Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where —

(a) the body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of

the authority; and

(b) either) —
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is more than one class, the total
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which you or the other
relevant person have a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the
total issued share capital of that class.

Yourself

Corporate/monitoring officer/pecuniaryinterestsoct13

Page 58




Appendix 2

Other relevant person

SENSITIVE INTERESTS

Indicate in your answers above any interests that you regard as being
sensitive interests (defined in section 32(1)(b) of the Localism Act 2011 as an
interest the disclosure of which would lead to you or a person connected with
you being subject to violence or intimidation). The agreement of the
Monitoring Officer is required for the details of sensitive interests to be omitted
from published versions of the register of interests.

DEFINITIONS:
“Authority” means the authority of which you are a member.

“‘Body in which you or another relevant person has a beneficial interest”
means a firm in which you or another relevant person (see below) are a
partner or a body corporate of which you or they are a director, or in the
securities of which you or they have a beneficial interest.

“Director” includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial
and provident society.

‘Land” excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which
does not carry with it a right for your or the other relevant person (alone or
jointly with another) to occupy the land or to receive income.

“‘Member” includes a co-opted member.

“‘Relevant person” means:

(i) you;

(i) your spouse or civil partner;

(iii) a person with whom you are living as husband and wife; or

(iv )a person with whom you are living as if you were civil partners.
References to an interest of “another relevant person” relate to an interest of
which you are aware.

“Securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds,
units of a collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial
Services and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other
than money deposited with a building society.

Corporate/monitoring officer/pecuniaryinterestsoct13

Page 59




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 60



LOCALISM ACT 2011
Appendix 3

Disclosure by Exeter City Council Member of a
Part 2 Interest in a matter under consideration at a
Council Meeting

I (full name)

A member of Exeter City Council hereby disclose that | have a Part 2 Interest in the following matter which
is the subject of consideration at the

[Committee], [Sub-Committee], [Executive], [Full Council] (Delete as appropriate held on (insert date)

The matter subject to consideration is:

| consider | have an interest because:

Such that it may relate to the [well being], [financial position] of [myself], a [friend], a [relative] or
[close associate] such that it may affect my judgement of the Public Interest. (Delete as appropriate)

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 62



3

Department for
Communities and
Local Government

Openness and transparency on personal
interests

A guide for councillors

September 2013
Department for Communities and Local Government

Page 63



© Crown copyright, 2013

Copyright in the typographical arrangement rests with the Crown.

You may re-use this information (not including logos) free of charge in any format or medium, under the
terms of the Open Government Licence. To view this licence, www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-
government-licence/ or write to the Information Policy Team, The National Archives, Kew, London TW9 4DU,

or email: psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk.

This document/publication is also available on our website at www.gov.uk/dclg

If you have any enquiries regarding this document/publication, email contactus@communities.gov.uk or write
to us at:

Department for Communities and Local Government
Eland House

Bressenden Place

London

SWH1E 5DU

Telephone: 030 3444 0000

For all our latest news and updates follow us on Twitter: https://twitter.com/CommunitiesUK

September 2013
ISBN: 978-1-4098--3604-9

Page 64



The Guide

This guide on personal interests gives basic practical information about how to be open
and transparent about your personal interests. It is designed to help councillors, including
parish councillors, now that new standards arrangements have been introduced by the

Localism Act 2011",

Why are there new rules?

Parliament has abolished the Standards Board regime and all the rules under it. It has
done this because that centrally-imposed, bureaucratic regime had become a vehicle for
petty, malicious and politically-motivated complaints against councillors. Rather than
creating a culture of trust and openness between councillors and those they represent, it
was damaging, without justification, the public’'s confidence in local democratic

governance.

The new standards arrangements that Parliament has put in place mean that it is largely
for councils themselves to decide their own local rules. It is essential that there is
confidence that councillors everywhere are putting the public interest first and are not
benefiting their own financial affairs from being a councillor. Accordingly, within the new
standards arrangements there are national rules about councillors’ interests.?

Such rules, in one form or another, have existed for decades. The new rules are similar to
the rules that were in place prior to the Standards Board regime. Those rules, originating
in the Local Government Act 1972 and the Local Government and Housing Act 1989,
involved local authority members registering their pecuniary interests in a publicly available
register, and disclosing their interests and withdrawing from meetings in certain
circumstances. Failure to comply with those rules was in certain circumstances a criminal
offence, as is failure to comply in certain circumstances with the new rules.

Does this affect me?
Yes, if you are an elected, co-opted, or appointed member of:

e a district, unitary, metropolitan, county or London borough council
e a parish or town council

¢ a fire and rescue authority

e a transport or other joint authority

e a combined authority or an economic prosperity board

¢ the London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority

¢ the Broads Authority

' The Guide should not be taken as providing any definitive interpretation of the statutory requirements;

those wishing to address such issues should seek their own legal advice.
? The national rules are in Chapter 7 of the Localism Act 2011 and in the secondary legislation made under

the Act, particularly in The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 (S.1.
2012/1464).

Page 65



¢ a National Park authority

e the Greater London Authority

e the Common Council of the City of London
e the Council of the Isles of Scilly

How will there be openness and transparency about my
personal interests?

The national rules require your council or authority to adopt a code of conduct for its
members and to have a register of members’ interests.

The national rules require your council’s code of conduct to comply with the Seven
Principles of Public Life, and to set out how, in conformity with the rules, you will have to
disclose and register your pecuniary and your other interests. Within these rules it is for
your council to decide what its code of conduct says. An illustrative text for such a code is
available on the Department’'s web site.®

Your council’s or authority’s monitoring officer (or in the case of a parish council the
monitoring officer of the district or borough council) must establish and maintain your
council’s register of members’ interests. Within the requirements of the national rules it is
for your council or authority to determine what is to be entered in its register of members’

interests.

What personal interests should be entered in my council’s or
authority’s register of members’ interests?

Disclosable pecuniary interests, and any other of your personal interests which your
council or authority, in particular through its code of conduct, has determined should be

registered.

Any other of your personal interests which you have asked the monitoring officer, who is
responsible for your council’s or authority’s register of members’ interests, to enter in the

register.

As explained in the following section, your registration of personal interests should be
guided by your duty to act in conformity with the seven principles of public life. You should
ensure that you register all personal interests that conformity with the seven principles
requires. These interests will necessarily include your membership of any Trade Union.

What must | do about registering my personal interests?

Under your council’'s code of conduct you must act in conformity with the Seven Principles
of Public Life. One of these is the principle of integrity — that ‘Holders of public office must
avoid placing themselves under any obligation to people or organisations that might try
inappropriately to influence them in their work. They should not act or take decisions in

® https://www.gov.uk/govemment/pubiications/iIIustraﬁve-text-for-local-code—of-conduct--z

Page 66



order to gain financial or other material benefits for themselves, their family, or their
friends. They must declare and resolve any interests and relationships.”.

Your registration of personal interests should be guided by this duty and you should give
the monitoring officer who is responsible for your council’s or authority’s register of
members’ interests any information he or she requests in order to keep that register up to
date and any other information which you consider should be entered in the register.

All sitting councillors need to register their declarable interests — both declarable pecuniary
interests, and other interests that must be declared and registered as required by your
authority’s code, or your duty to act in conformity with the Seven Principles of Public Life,
such as your membership of any Trade Union. Any suggestion that you should tell the
monitoring officer about your pecuniary interests only in the immediate aftermath of your
being elected is wholly incompatible with this duty, with which you must comply.

If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest which is not recorded in the register and which
relates to any business that is or will be considered at a meeting where you are present,
you must disclose® this to the meeting and tell the monitoring officer about it, if you have
not already done so, so that it can be added to the register. You must tell the monitoring
officer within 28 days of disclosing the interest. For this purpose a meeting includes any
meeting of your council or authority, of its executive or any committee of the executive,
and of any committee, sub-committee, joint committee or joint sub-committee of your

authority.

If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest which is not shown in the register and relates
to any business on which you are acting alone, you must, within 28 days of becoming
aware of this, tell the monitoring officer about it, if you have not already done so, so that it
can be added to the register. You must also stop dealing with the matter as soon as you
become aware of having a disclosable pecuniary interest relating to the business.

When you are first elected, co-opted, or appointed a member to your council or authority,
you must, within 28 days of becoming a member, tell the monitoring officer who is
responsible for your council’s or authority’s register of members’ interests about your
disclosable pecuniary interests. If you are re-elected, re-co-opted, or reappointed a
member, you need to tell the monitoring officer about only those disclosable pecuniary

interests that are not already recorded in the register.

What are pecuniary interests?

A person’s pecuniary interests are their business interests (for example their employment,
trade, profession, contracts, or any company with which they are associated) and wider

* http://www.public-standards.gov.uk/about-us/what-we-do/the-seven-principles/

° If the interest is a sensitive interest you should disclose merely the fact that you have such a disclosable
pecuniary interest, rather than the interest. A sensitive interest is one which the member and the monitoring
officer, who is responsible for the register of members’ interests, consider that disclosure of its details could
lead to the member, or a person connected to the member, being subject to violence or intimidation.

Page 67



financial interests they might have (for example trust funds, investments, and assets
including land and property).

Do | have any disclosable pecuniary interests?

You have a disclosable pecuniary interest if you, or your spouse or civil partner, have a
pecuniary interest listed in the national rules (see annex). Interests or your spouse or civil
partner, following the approach of the rules under the 1972 and 1989 Acts, are included to
ensure that the public can have confidence that councillors are putting the public interest
first and not benefiting the financial affairs of themselves or their spouse or civil partner
from which the councillor would stand to gain. For this purpose your spouse or civil
partner includes any person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or as if they

were your civil partner.

Does my spouse’s or civil partner's name need to appear on
the register of interests?

No. For the purposes of the register, an interest of your spouse or civil partner, which is
listed in the national rules, is your disclosable pecuniary interest. Whilst the detailed
format of the register of members’ interests is for your council to decide, there is no
requirement to differentiate your disclosable pecuniary interests between those which
relate to you personally and those that relate to your spouse or civil partner.

Does my signature need to be published online? Won't this
put me at risk of identity theft?

There is no legal requirement for the personal signatures of councillors to be published
online.

Who can see the register of members’ interests?

Except for parish councils, a council’s or authority’s register of members’ interests must be
available for inspection in the local area, and must be published on the council’s or

authority’s website.

For parish councils, the monitoring officer who is responsible for the council’s register of
members’ interests must arrange for the parish council’s register of members’ interests to
be available for inspection in the district of borough, and must be published on the district

or borough council’s website.

Where the parish council has its own website, its register of members’ interests must also
be published on that website.

This is in line with the Government'’s policies of transparency and accountability, ensuring
that the public have ready access to publicly available information.

Page 68



Any payment of, or liability to pay, council tax does not create a disclosable pecuniary
interest as defined in the national rules; hence being a council tax payer does not mean
that you need a dispensation to take part in the business of setting the council tax or
precept or local arrangements for council tax support.

If you are a homeowner or tenant in the area of your council you will have registered, in
accordance with the national rules, that beneficial interest in land. However, this
disclosable pecuniary interest is not a disclosable pecuniary interest in the matter of
setting the council tax or precept since decisions on the council tax or precept do not
materially affect your interest in the land. For example, it does not materially affect the
value of your home, your prospects of selling that home, or how you might use or enjoy

that land.

Accordingly, you will not need a dispensation to take part in the business of setting the
council tax or precept or local arrangements for council tax support, which is in any event a
decision affecting the generality of the public in the area of your council, rather than you as

an individual.

When and how can | apply for a dispensation?

The rules allow your council or authority in certain circumstances to grant a dispensation to
permit a member to take part in the business of the authority even if the member has a
disclosable pecuniary interest relating to that business. These circumstances are where
the council or authority considers that:

e without the dispensation so great a proportion of the council or authority would be
prohibited from participating in that business as to impede the council’s or
authority’s transaction of that business,

¢ without the dispensation the representation of different political groups dealing with
that business would be so upset as to alter the likely outcome of any vote,

e the granting of the dispensation is in the interests of people living in the council’s or
authority’s area,

e without the dispensation each member of the council’s executive would be
prohibited from participating in the business, or

e it is otherwise appropriate to grant a dispensation.

If you would like your council or authority to grant you a dispensation, you must make a
written request to the officer responsible for handling such requests in the case of your

council or authority.

What happens if | don’t follow the rules on disclosable
pecuniary interests?

It is a criminal offence if, without a reasonable excuse, you fail to tell the monitoring officer
about your disclosable pecuniary interests, either for inclusion on the register if you are a
newly elected, co-opted or appointed member, or to update the register if you are re-
elected or re-appointed, or when you become aware of a disclosable pecuniary interest
which is not recorded in the register but which relates to any matter;

Page 69



Is there any scope for withholding information on the
published register?

Copies of the register of members’ interests which are available for inspection or published
must not include details of a member’s sensitive interest, other than stating that the
member has an interest the details of which are withheld. A sensitive interest is one which
the member and the monitoring officer, who is responsible for the register of members’
interests, consider that disclosure of its details could lead to the member, or a person
connected to the member, being subject to violence or intimidation.

When is information about my interests removed from my
council’s register of members’ interests?

If you cease to have an interest, that interest can be removed from the register. If you
cease to be a member of the authority, all of your interests can be removed from the

register.

What does having a disclosable pecuniary interest stop me
doing?

If you are present at a meeting of your council or authority, of its executive or any
committee of the executive, or of any committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or joint
sub-committee of your authority, and you have a disclosable pecuniary interest relating to
any business that is or will be considered at the meeting, you must not.

 participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become aware
of your disclosable pecuniary interest during the meeting participate further in any

discussion of the business, or
« participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.

These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a member of
the public.

In certain circumstances you can request a dispensation from these prohibitions.

Where these prohibitions apply, do | also have to leave the
room?

Where your council’s or authority’s standing orders require this, you must leave the room.
Even where there are no such standing orders, you must leave the room if you consider
your continued presence is incompatible with your council’s code of conduct or the Seven

Principles of Public Life.

Do | need a dispensation to take part in the business of
setting council tax or a precept?

Page 70



e that will be or is being considered at a meeting where you are present, or
e on which you are acting alone.

Itis also a criminal offence to knowingly or recklessly provide false or misleading
information, or to participate in the business of your authority where that business involves
a disclosable pecuniary interest. It is also a criminal offence to continue working on a
matter which can be discharged by a single member and in which you have a disclosable

pecuniary interest.

If you are found guilty of such a criminal offence, you can be fined up to £5,000 and
disqualified from holding office as a councillor for up to five years.

Where can | look at the national rules on pecuniary
interests?

The national rules about pecuniary interests are set out in Chapter 7 of the Localism Act
2011, which is available on the internet here:

hitp://www . leqislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/part/1/chapter/7 /enacted

and in the secondary legislation made under the Act, in particular The Relevant Authorities
(Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 which can be found here:

hitp://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/contents/made

Page 71



Annex A

Description of Disclosable Pecuniary
Interests

If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable pecuniary
interests under the new national rules. Any reference to spouse or civil partner includes
any person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or as if they were your civil

partner.

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain,
which you, or your spouse or civil partner, undertakes.

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from your council
or authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any expenses
incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your election
expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within
the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.
The relevant period is the 12 months ending on the day when you tell the
monitoring officer about your disclosable pecuniary interests following your election
or re-election, or when you became aware you had a disclosable pecuniary interest
relating to a matter on which you were acting alone.

Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your civil partner (ora
body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial interest)

and your council or authority —
o under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be

executed; and
o which has not been fully discharged.

Any beneficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, have
and which is within the area of your council or authority.

Any licence (alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse or your civil
partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council or authority for a month or

longer.

Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) —
o the landlord is your council or authority; and
o the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a

beneficial interest.

Page 72



Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner has in
securities of a body where —
o (a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area
of your council or authority; and
o (b) either —
= the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or
= if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which you, or your
spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial interest exceeds one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.

Page 73



Page 74



1.1

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

Agenda ltem 10

EXETER CITY COUNCIL

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
27 NOVEMBER 2013

CORPORATE RISK REGISTER
PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

To advise the Committee of the Council’s risk management progress and
present the updated Corporate Risk Register.

BACKGROUND

The Risk Management Policy makes this Committee responsible for:
- approving the Corporate Risk Register
- monitoring the effectiveness of risk management throughout the Council

The Corporate Risk Register provides details of those risks which could have
a major impact on the city or the Council and need to be monitored and
managed at a senior management/political level. Risks which could have an
impact on a service, but which would not necessarily impact on a council-wide
or city basis, are contained in the operational risk register and managed by
Assistant Directors and Managers.

CORPORATE RISK REGISTER

Assistant Directors, Corporate Managers and the Deputy Chief Executive
have reviewed the Council’s risks. Due to the short timescale since the last
review of the risk register, most of the risks have stayed the same. Any
changes are detailed below:

New risks

One new risk has been added to the Corporate Risk Register (13/028)
relating to property management. It has become apparent that there is a
skills shortage across the Council in terms of effective property management
(electrical maintenance, asbestos monitoring, legionella monitoring etc) and
that this issue needs to be addressed at a corporate level.

Changes to risk scores

One risk has increased in score since the last reporting period. This related
to the overspend of the voids repair budget — the likelihood score has
increased to 4 (very likely). Options are being considered to ensure that this
risk is mitigated in the future and an update report will be provided at the next
Audit and Governance Committee.

Post mitigated scores have been included where appropriate.

Page 75



4, RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRESS

4.1 Since the last reporting period, work has been undertaken to prepare an
Operational Risk Register. Some services have already produced
Operational Risk Registers so these have been consolidated into one
register. Additional operational risks have been identified through the
performance reports which are reported to SMT and through having individual
meetings with Assistant Directors and Managers.

4.2 During the next reporting period and thereafter, Internal Audit will undertake
an audit of operational risks as selected by this Committee. The findings of
the audit will be reported to the subsequent Audit and Governance
Committee.

6. RECOMMENDATIONS
That the Audit and Governance Committee review the updated Corporate

Risk Register.

CORPORATE MANAGER POLICY, COMMUNICATIONS AND COMMUNITY
ENGAGEMENT

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended)
Background papers used in compiling this report:-

None

Page 76



Agenda ltem 11

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 82



	Agenda
	5 Annual Audit letter 2013 (Grant Thornton)
	6 Internal Audit Progress Report
	APPENDIX A Progress of audit plan 1st Half as at 30 09 13final
	APPENDIX B Summary of work completed Jul - Sept 2013final

	7 Revision of the Internal Audit Plan 2013/14
	8 Protocol for Recording Committee Meetings
	Draft Protocol for Recording

	9 Register of Interest  Forms and Code of Conduct
	Appendix1ExeterCodeofConduct
	Appendix2members DPI  disclosable Pecuniary Interest form oct 2013 (2)
	Appendix3members Disclosure Part 2 declaration Form 061113 doc
	Appendix 4DCLG Guidance

	10 Presentation of the Corporate Governance Risk Register Quarterly Review
	11 Corporate Governance Risk Register Quarterly Review (Appendix B)

